
 
 
 

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE 
 

Board of Selectmen Agenda 
November 10, 2022, @ 6:00 PM  

VILLAGE FIRE STATION 
32 North Street 

 

 
This is an in-person meeting, but the public may join in Zoom webinar format 

Join by computer or mobile device and click on: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83275232317 

or go to ZOOM and enter the webinar ID: 832 7523 2317 
By phone 1(929) 205 6099 US 

 
 
1. Call to Order. 

2. Approve the October 27, 2022, selectmen meeting minutes. 

3. Public Forum (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address the Board of 
Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda.) 

4. Request for Liqueur License Extension for Kennebunkport Inn, LLC.  
 

5. Public Hearing: Consider approving the consent agreement with the Engels, 437 
Kings Highway, for the setback violation.  

 
6. Shellfish License Allocation for 2023.                    

7. Consider extending the Shellfish License season by four months. 

8. Update on the Wildes District Road construction project. 
 

9. Consider setting up a Stop sign at on Community House Road. 
 

10. Consider placing a tax-acquired property, map, block and lot 21-9-58 out for sale.  
 

11. Request for the Street Opening Permit by George Burr & Sons for Old Fort Ave.  
 

12. Adoption of the budget development schedule from July 2023 through June 2024. 
 

13. Appointment of the Boat Launch Committee members. 
 

14. Consider appointing Susan Kaagan for the Conservation Commission with the 
term expiration on July 1, 2023. 

   

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83275232317
https://zoom.us/join


15. Accept a $7,750 donation from several citizens of the Kennebunkport GOP 
towards the emergency fuel fund.  

16. Accept a $1,200 donation from an anonymous donor towards the general needs 
account.  

17. Other Business.   

18. Approve the November 10, 2022, Treasurer’s Warrant. 

19. Adjournment.  



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Town of Kennebunkport 
Board of Selectmen Meeting 

October 27, 2022 
5:30 PM 

MINUTES 

Selectmen attending:  Jon Dykstra, Edward Hutchins, Michael Weston, Allen Daggett. 

1. Call to Order.
Selectman Weston called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM.

2. Executive session per (MRSA 1, §405-6E) for consultation with Town attorney to
discuss legal rights and duties.

3. Approve the October 13, 2022, selectmen meeting minutes.

Motion by Selectman Dykstra, seconded by Selectman Matthew-Bull, to approve the
October 13, 2022, selectmen meeting minutes. Voted: 3-0. Motion passed.

4. Public Forum. (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address the Board of
Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda.)

There were no comments from the public.

No motion was necessary. No action was taken.

5. Consider a renewal Liquor License Application submitted by Asador LLC d/b/a
The Lost Fire, 625 Mills Road.

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Dykstra, to renew the
Liquor License Application submitted by Asador LLC d/b/a The Lost Fire, 625 Mills
Road. Voted: 3-0. Motion passed.

6. Goose Rocks Beach Advisory Committee recommendation to request advice
from the GRB Committee before appointing someone to fill the committee
vacancy.

Selectman Weston updated the residents that Tom Ferrara, elected in June 2022,
resigned from the Beach Advisory Committee for personal reasons. The Board of
Selectmen needs to appoint a replacement until June, and since Tom was appointed
for a three-year term with expiration in 2025, the new candidate will run for a two-year

Item 2



October 27, 2022, BOS Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 4 

term. The Town has advertised for the opening but has not received any applications 
yet. 

The Goose Rocks Beach Advisory Committee passed a resolution recommending to 
the Board of Selectmen that any appointment to the GRBAC they make would be upon 
the advice of the GRBAC.     

Motion by Selectman Dykstra, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to accept Goose 
Rocks Beach Advisory Committee’s recommendation to request advice from the GRB 
Committee prior to appointing someone to fill the committee vacancy. Voted: 3-0. 
Motion passed. 

7. Discussion of Town Manager and Finance staffing.

Laurie Smith, the Town Manager, presented a new model of staffing at the Town
Manager and Finance offices. She explained that currently, the Town Manager and
Finance staff work together as one team and, besides the Town Manager, we have 4.3
full-time equivalent positions. A few changes that happened recently in the economy
and labor market urged the need to re-evaluate the functions and positions at the Town
Hall.

Laurie offered a new model that introduced two new positions: Special Projects
Manager/HR Administrator and Communications & Technology Specialist.

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Dykstra, to accept the
changes in Town Manager and Finance offices as presented by the Town Manager.
Voted: 3-0. Motion passed.

8. Consider the Ad-hoc Boat Launch Committee’s purpose and guidelines.

Laurie Smith, the Town Manager, reminded the Board that at their last meeting, they
approved establishing an ad-hoc Boat Launch Committee. The staff advertised and
received 12 applications so far. Jon Dykstra sent an email to each applicant asking them
to share their unique experience that would help to contribute to the goal of the
committee.

Laurie also said she wrote a committee description, purpose, and goals that will serve
to each member as a guide.

Motion by Selectman Dykstra, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to adopt the ad-
hoc Boat Launch Committee purpose and goals. Voted: 3-0. Motion passed.

9. Sewer Commitment for six prorated properties.



October 27, 2022, BOS Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 4 

Chris Simeoni, Public Works Director, said that recently we had 6 more properties obtain 
occupancy that was established after the commitment date. According to our policy, 
sewer bills are established on a prorated basis once the certificate of occupancy is 
authorized. 

Motion by Selectman Dykstra, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to commit the 
six sewer bills announced by the Public Works Director. Voted: 3-0. Motion passed. 

10. Discussion of the November and December Board of Selectmen meeting dates.

Laurie Smith, the Town Manager, explained that the first meeting in November falls on
November 10, which is normal and requires no changes. The second meeting falls on
November 24, which is Thanksgiving.

Selectman Dykstra offered to meet on Tuesday, November 22 at 3 PM. The other Board
members agreed on the date.

Further, Laurie explained that the first meeting in December falls on December 8, which
is normal and requires no changes. The second meeting falls on December 22. She
asked if the Board wanted to keep that meeting and the members said they were ok
with keeping both dates as regular meetings in December.

No motion was necessary. No action was taken.

11. Accept a $50.00 donation from an anonymous donor dedicated towards the
nurses’ account.

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Dykstra, to accept a
$50.00 donation from an anonymous donor dedicated towards the nurses’ account.
Voted: 3-0. Motion passed.

12. Accept a $100.00 donation from Christopher Audley dedicated towards the
emergency fuel fund.

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Dykstra, to accept a
$50.00 donation from an anonymous donor dedicated towards the emergency fuel fund.
Voted: 3-0. Motion passed.

13. Other business.

Selectmen Weston thanked David Kling, Dick Smith and his grandchildren, Bill Duggan,
and Sheldon Pope’s family for helping to restore the little fire truck at the Firefighters’
Park. It is there at the park and ready to be used by children.



October 27, 2022, BOS Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 4 

Laurie said that she notified the Board of Selectmen about the Cape Porpoise Pier 
schedule. There have been some delays due to real estate deed work for the EDA and 
workforce issues in terms of design staff. We have submitted paperwork for permits and 
more applications will be submitted to EDA and DOT by November 16 for their review. 
We hope to hear back from them by the middle of January and then we will be ready to 
place the project out to bid so we can have a contract on board by April. Because of this 
timeframe, they cannot do any underwater work or in-water work until the following 
November by the DEP regulation. This means we are hoping to get a contractor in 
spring. The Pier project won’t take place until winter 2023-2024.    

No motion was necessary. No motion was taken. 

14. Approve the October 27, 2022, Treasurer’s Warrant.

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Dykstra, to approve the
October 27, 2022, Treasurer’s Warrant. Voted: 3-0. Motion passed.

15. Adjournment.

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Dykstra, to adjourn.
Voted:  3-0. Motion passed. Meeting adjourned at 7:02 PM.

Submitted by,  
Yanina Nickless, 

Special Projects Manager/HR Administrator 



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Item 4















 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



T O W N  O F  K E N N E B U N K P O R T,  M A I N E 
~ INCORPORATED 1653 ~ 

6 Elm Street, P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046  •  Tel: (207) 967-4243  Fax: (207) 967-8470 

Memorandum 

Fr: Werner Gilliam, CFM Director of Planning and Development 
To: Laurie Smith, Town Manager 
Dt: November 2, 2022 
Re: Setback Violation 437 Kings Highway 

I have been working with Barry and Harriett Engel regarding a review of the building file for 
their property located at 437 Kings Highway. In that review it was discovered that their 
home which was constructed in 1974, shortly after the adoption of zoning, did not meet the 
required 20’ front setback. The property has changed hands numerous times over the past 
48 years. The Engels wish to resolve the issue via a Nov/Consent agreement process.  

My research has found that the home was permitted in 1974. It is rare that we find copies 
of original permits from that era. Besides the one-page permit application, there are no 
other documents alone-page review from the original construction.  

Based on a review of the file and the fact that the violation was not a willful act of the 
current owners, I do not have any objection to the proposed consent agreement that has 
been reviewed and approved by the town attorney, provided that all associated legal fees 
are paid by the property owner related to the resolution of this matter. 

Item 5

http://www.njscuba.net/artifacts/img/3masted_schooner.jpg




























 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



KENNEBUNKPORT TOWN CLERK 

P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine, 04046 • Tel. (207) 967-4243 

To: Board of Selectmen 
Shellfish Committee 
Laurie Smith 
Everett Leach 

Fr: Tracey O’Roak 

Dt: October 26, 2022 

Re: 2023 Shellfish License Allocations 

The Shellfish Committee has met and is proposing the following allocations for Shellfish 
Licenses in 2023. The license numbers are the same as last year for each category. 

TYPE OF LICENSE NUMBER OF LICENSES 
AVAILABLE COST PER LICENSE 

COMMERCIAL 
(RESIDENT ONLY) 

2 $125.00 

RECREATIONAL – 
SENIOR (65+) RESIDENT 

25 NO CHARGE 

RECREATIONAL – 
RESIDENT 

55 $15.00 

NON-RESIDENT 10 $30.00 

NON-RESIDENT SENIOR 
(65+) 

3 NO CHARGE 

WARDEN 
RECREATIONAL 

LICENSE 

1 NO CHARGE 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Item 6



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Item 7









 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



63 
Sidewalks

33%

73 Shoulders
39% 

52 Minimal 
Change

28%

Wildes District Road Survey
Item 8



12 Sidewalks
23%

19 Shoulders
37%

21 Minimal 
Change

40%

Wildes District Road Only



8 Sidewalks
20%

13 Shoulders
32%

19 Minimal Change
48%

Wildes District Road along project scope



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Item 9



White Stop Bar on Pavement

Stop Sign Installed at Intersection



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Item 10









 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



T O W N  O F  K E N N E B U N K P O R T, M A I N E 
– INCORPORATED 1653 –

6 Elm Street, P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046 
Tel: (207) 967-4243 Fax: (207) 967-8470 

Memorandum 

Dt: November 2, 2022 
To: Laurie Smith 
Fr: Chris Simeoni, Director of Public Works 
Re: Request for Street Opening Permit by George Burr & Sons for Old Fort Ave 

On November 2, the Public Works Department received a request from George Burr 
& Sons for a street opening permit for Old Fort Avenue (residence will be 11 Haverhill 
Avenue) to install a new water service. The extent of the work was to cut a 5’ x 5’ wide 
section of pavement at the edge of Old Fort Avenue to access the water line on the 
same side of the road as the residence. (A pavement cut may not be necessary if the 
water main is out of the paved portion of the roadway upon excavation.) 

They have submitted a street opening permit application as required by ordinance. 
(Please see attached documents.)  After properly backfilling and compacting, George 
Burr & Sons will be required to repair the pavement cut by adding and compacting 2 
½” of base asphalt material.  

It is my recommendation to authorize the street opening permit with the conditions 
noted above. 

Item 11











 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



https://kennebunkport.sharepoint.com/sites/agendas/Shared Documents/Agendas - 2022/Items/11.10.22/Budget Development Schedule Fiscal Year 2024.docx11/5/2018 

 Town of Kennebunkport   - Fiscal Year 2024 
July 2023 to June 2024 - Budget Development Schedule 

• October 7, 2022 – Send out all applications to Social Service Agencies.

• November 10, 2022 – Board of Selectmen to review proposed budget development schedule and submit
priorities and special requests.

• November 16, 2022 - Social service agency requests are due.

• December 1, 2022 –Budget request sent to all departments, committees, outside agencies and Trio budget
module opens for entries.

• December 2, 2022 – Forward all social service agency request to the Budget Board subcommittee.

• December 6, 2022 – Forward all social service agency requests to Budget Board subcommittee.

• December 7, 2022 - Budget requests sent to all committees and outside agencies.

• December 22, 2022 – CIP documents due to Town Manager.

• January 3, 2023 – (Tuesday) All budget requests are submitted to Finance.

• January 9, 2023 - Budget Board social service agency recommendations are given to Town Manager.

• January 12, 2023 – (Thursday @ 6:00 PM) – Capital discussion at regular Board of Selectmen meeting.

• January 16, 2023 – Week of – Town Manager meets with all departments.

• January 30, 2023 – Week of – Town Manager has follow-up meetings with all departments.

• February 24, 2023 – (Friday) - Town manager submits capital and operating budget to the Board of Selectmen
and Budget Board. THIS IS NOT A MEETING. It is a deadline for submitting information.

• March 2, 2023 (Thursday @ 6:00 PM) – JOINT MEETING - Budget Board will meet at 5:30 to elect officers.
Town manager and department heads present overview and department operational budgets to the Board of
Selectmen. The Budget Board will attend the meeting to hear all requests.

• March 9, 2023 (Thursday @ 6:00 PM) –JOINT MEETING – Presentation of remaining department operational
budgets. The Budget Board will attend the meeting to hear all requests.   (Regular Board of Selectman
Meeting to follow at 7 PM.)

• March 16, 2023 (Thursday @ 6:00 PM) – JOINT MEETING - Presentation of department capital, town
committee, outside agency, and social service requests.  Town Committee requests, outside agency requests
and social service requests.   The Budget Board will attend the meeting to hear all requests.

• March 23, 2023 (Thursday @ 6:00 PM) – SELECTMEN meet to review final budgets and take all
recommendation votes.  (Regular Board of Selectman as well.)

• March 24, 2023 (Friday) – Submit all budget recommendations to Budget Board.

• March 30, 2023 (Thursday @ 6:00 PM) – BUDGET BOARD meet to review final budgets and take all
recommendation votes.

• April 6, 2023 (Thursday @ 6:00 PM) – JOINT MEETING – if necessary – Last chance to make any
adjustments in the budget or their recommendations.

• April 21, 2023 – (Friday) Submit town report version of the budget to the printers.

Item 12



https://kennebunkport.sharepoint.com/sites/agendas/Shared Documents/Agendas - 2022/Items/11.10.22/Budget Development Schedule Fiscal Year 2024.docx11/5/2018 

• April 27, 2023 (Thursday @ 6:00 PM) – Board of Selectmen meeting to sign the warrant (Last possible day to
sign will be April 28)

• May 23, 2023 – (Tuesday) Distribution of town reports.

• June 13, 2023 – (Tuesday) Annual town meeting - elections.

• June 17, 2023 – (Saturday) Annual town meeting – Consolidated School.



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



T O W N  O F  K E N N E B U N K P O R T, M A I N E 
– INCORPORATED 1653 –

6 Elm Street, P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046 
Tel: (207) 967-4243 Fax: (207) 967-8470 

Memorandum 

Dt: November 4, 2022 
To: Laurie Smith 
Fr: Yanina Nickless, Special Projects Manager 
Re: Appointment of Ad Hoc Boat Launch Committee 

The Board of Selectmen authorized the creation of the Boat Launch Committee. This 
committee will have multiple functions, among which are becoming familiar with the 
currently available boat launch facilities, going over all town-owned parcels to find the 
most appropriate spot for the boat launch, and researching all funding opportunities. 
The committee will operate until the end of calendar year 2023 and report any findings 
to the Board of Selectmen on a regular basis, as this is an acute problem for 
Kennebunkport.  

On October 14, the Town of Kennebunkport announced an open search for the Boat 
Launch Committee volunteers to develop a plan and strategy for a public boat launch 
spot. In the very first week of the search, we received 12 applications. Due to practical 
reasons and looking through other similar committees, the Board of Selectmen 
decided to have five members. Jon Dykstra, a Selectman, sent out an email to each 
applicant asking to describe a particular experience, including the professional one, or 
any other factors that the person would bring to the committee to help meet established 
goals.  

After a careful review process and long deliberations, we decided to recommend the 
following people to serve on the committee: 

• Hartwell Blanchard
• Jeff Dant
• Charles Howarth
• Carol Morris
• Richard Perry

Their experiences and diverse backgrounds were the most suitable for this committee. 
We also believe that, with the help of Selectmen representative Dykstra on the 
committee, each member will be able to bring a unique perspective while working hard 
towards the set goal. 

Item 13

















































 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Item 14





 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Item 15















 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Item 16






